ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE

VEMBERS PRESENTS3

Senat or Fred Dyson,
Senator Gary W/ ken,
Senator Lyda Green
Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Kim El ton

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 313

April 12, 2006
2:41 p.m

Chair
Vice Chair

"An Act relating to scheduling Salvia divinorum as a controlled

subst ance. "

MOVED SB 313 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 48

"An Act relating to reconmmending or refusing psychotropic drugs
or certain types of evaluations or treatnments for children."”
MOVED CSSB 48( HES) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 313

SHORT TITLE: SALVI A DI VI NORUM AS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

04/ 05/ 06
04/ 05/ 06
04/ 12/ 06

BILL: SB 48

(S)
(S)
(S)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD
HES AT 2:45 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE. PSYCH. EVALUATI ON TREATMENT FOR STUDENTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 12/ 05
01/ 12/ 05
04/ 05/ 06
04/ 05/ 06
04/ 12/ 06

SENATE HES COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-- Meeting Cancel ed --

HES AT 2:45 PM BUTROVI CH 205

- 1- April 12, 2006



W TNESS REG STER

Dave Stancliff

Staff to Senator Therriault

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 313.

Jack Degenstein

8180 Kronos Drive

Anchorage, AK 99502

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 313.

Senat or Betty Davis

State Capitol Building

Juneau AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 48.

Ri chard Benavi des

Staff to Senator Davis

State Capitol Bl dg.

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 48 for sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 2:41:54 PM
Present were Senators Donny O son, Lyda Geen, Gary WIken, and
Chair Dyson.

SB 313- SALVI A DI VI NORUM AS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 313 to be up for consideration.

DAVE STANCLI FF, staff to Senator Therriault, sponsor, said that

salvia divinorum (salvia) is the nost pot ent nat ur al
hal | uci nogeni ¢ substance known to exist on the planet. He said
that although the Mazatec Indians who originally used the drug
were able to keep it a secret until very recently, there are

currently over 10,000 web sites about the drug today. Wiile the
drug is legal in all but two states, seven countries have pl aced
strict controls on it or banned it outright.

He said that only 200 mcrograns of salvia can induce a
hal | uci nogenic state and 500 mcrograns can induce a serious

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 12, 2006



loss of nental and physical capacity. He added that sone
experienced users of salvia have testified to having horrible
experiences with the drug and have di scouraged others from using
the drug to achieve their first halluci nogenic experience.

2:52: 58 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) has commented on the bill.

MR. STANCLIFF replied that DHSS has not yet commented on this
bill.

2:55: 02 PM

CHAI R DYSON said he would have to consult DHSS before acting on
the bill.

2:56: 50 PM

SENATOR ELTON referenced a recent news article from the Del anare
News Journal claimng that research on salvia s effects on the
brain mght help scientists to better understand Al zheiner’s
di sease and other forms of organic nental illness. He asked
whet her crimnalizing Salvia would interfere with that research

MR. STANCLIFF replied that it would not.
SENATOR COLSON asked what the active ingredient in salvia is.

MR. STANCLIFF replied that it contains two active ingredients
sal vinorum A and sal vi norum B. He added that the concentration
of the active ingredients could be increased by a factor of 20
to 40 by soaking the |eaves in an al cohol bath.

2:58: 08 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked whether netabolites or other chem cal
conmpounds woul d be affected by this |egislation.

MR. STANCLI FF replied no. This drug does not seem to affect the
met abol i sm the sane way as nescaline and LSD. It interferes with
different receptors that affect in the way the brain operates.

SENATOR COLSON asked whether this legislation would increase the

burden on the nedical community by affecting simlar legitimte
dr ugs.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 12, 2006



2:59:33 PM

JACK DEGENSTEI N, Anchorage resident read a statenment saying that
maki ng savlia divinorum an illegal substance is not warranted
It is not a threat to Alaskan society. However, this bill, if
passed into law, would be a threat to the freedons of Anmerican
citizens.

He related how un-factual nedia articles and runors have |ead
uninfornmed people to believe that salvia divinorum is a
dangerous plant and m ght cause soneone to commt suicide or
beconme depressed. A report by a Dr. Hains indicated that a 26-
year-old woman found relief from depression only by taking self-
nmedi cat ed does of sal via divinorum

He said further that Senator Therriault is quoted as saying that
salvia divinorumis believed to cause schizophrenia, but that is
absurd because its cause is not known and is linked to a genetic
brain deformty that develops from birth. It is possible that
the intensity of the experience of salvia divinorum could
trigger it, but no nore than any intense enotional or stressfu

experi ence.

3:04:11 PM

MR. DEGENSTEIN said that no long-term affects are known to be
caused by salvia divinorum |Its toxicity level is very |low or
possi bly even non-existent and the body easily netabolizes it.

A survey of 500 random participants who use the plant found that
the average age of the users was 23.4 years old and the average
use within a 30-day period was 1.5 tines. This information
denonstrates that there is a nuch wder user base than just
youth and that it is not a substance that is used over and over
for recreation such as other things |ike alcohol and marijuana.
It also doesn’t taste good.

3:07: 43PM

MR. DEGENSTEIN renmarked that while the bill my reduce the use
of salvia within the youth comunity, it would infringe upon the
|iberty of older, nore responsible users. There are other, |ess
intrusive ways of reducing recreational use of the drug such as
banning the sale it or the sale of its extract.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2006



CHAI R DYSON asked him to describe non-recreational uses of the
dr ug.

MR. DEGENSTEIN replied that some use it for spiritual purposes.

CHAIR DYSON asked him if he has information from nedi cal
professionals to support the claim that this drug is not
dangerous to the general popul ation.

MR. DECGENSTEIN replied that he included three references in his
witten statement and added that nuch of the aforenmentioned
information is available on the web at Pubned s central website
and at Sage W sdone. org.

SENATOR W LKEN asked him if he had read page 3 of the WKkipedia
article in the background information that acconpanied the bill.

MR. DEGENSTEIN replied that he had read it.

SENATOR W LKEN asked whether anything would prevent soneone
under its influence fromattenpting to drive a car.

MR. DEGENSTEIN replied that while there is nothing that would
prevent sonmeone from attenpting to operate a car, the drug is
unlike alcohol in that it does not renove inhibitions. Peopl e
under the influence of salvia divinorum know that they are
unabl e to safely operate a vehicle.

SENATOR W LKEN said according to the entry, |ow doses of the
drug coul d cause spontaneous |aughter, closed eye visuals, and a
hei ght ened sense of color and texture. Moder at e doses cause a
sense of time distortion, open eye visuals, sensations of
falling, fully fornmed visions of other places, people and
events, and confusion. H gh doses can cause out of body
experi ences, gravitational di stortion, verti go, and audio
hal l uci nations. So, he was particularly concerned when he read
that a person will not realize that they have used the drug and
asked whether it is unreasonable to place restrictions on a drug
wi th such affects.

MR. DEGENSTEI N r esponded:

It is true that at higher doses the user does forget
that they have taken the drug, but also forget that
they are a person and wouldn’t be able to conprehend
things such as driving a car. That is part of the
primary effect, the ammesia. They wear off in five to

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2006



seven mnutes and then you know what is going on, so
the ammesia is very short-term

3:14: 04 PM
SENATOR W LKEN said that he finds the drug to be rather scary.

CHAI R DYSON said that he would like to hear the opinion of DHSS
on this |egislation.

MR. STANCLI FF replied that he would consult w th DHSS.

SENATOR WLKEN noved to report SB 313 out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendati ons and attached fiscal notes.

SENATOR ELTON objected to relate a comrent. He said he
understood Chair Dyson to say that the sponsor would report the
response of DHSS to the comm ttee.

CHAI R DYSON replied that is correct and added that if DHSS does
not concur with the action of the sponsor, he would ask that the
bill be brought back to the commttee.

SENATOR ELTON renoved hi s objection.

There were no further objections and SB 313 was reported from
conmittee.

SB  48- PSYCH. EVALUATI ON TREATMENT FOR STUDENTS

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 48 to be up for consideration. He
noved to adopt the wversion L as the commttee’'s working
docunent. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

SENATOR BETTY DAVI S, sponsor of SB 48, deferred the introduction
of the bill to her aide R chard Benavi des.

3:18: 00 PM

Rl CHARD BENAVI DES, staff to Senator Davis, said that SB 48 woul d
ensure that a public school could not deny any student access to
progranms or services sinply because the parent of that student
has refused to place him on any kind of psychotropic nedication
or get a psychiatric evaluation or seek a psychiatric or
psychol ogi cal treatnment for that student.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2006



He said SB 48 also specifies who is qualified to perform
eval uations on students and it outlines protections parents have
agai nst being reported to the Ofice of Child Services (OCS) for
refusal to put their children on psychotropic mnedication.

MR. BENAVIDES said the sponsor recognizes that often tines
psychotropic nedication 1is recommended and prescribed for
children with any kind of nental, behavioral, or enotional
synptons when its potential benefits outweigh it potential
risks. The US Departnent of Education (USDOE) has nmade it clear
that while it recognizes that nedical professionals are
responsi ble for prescribing nedication, educators also play a
role in meking any type of diagnosis by providing information
about a student’s behavi or.

MR. BENAVI DES said that in 2004 reauthorization of the | DAEA | aw
requires each state to prohibit any school district personal
fromrequiring a child to obtain a prescription for a substance
covered by the controlled substances act as a condition of
attendi ng school, receiving services, or receiving an eval uation
for a disability.

He said that the bill incorporates the | anguage fromthat law to
clarify that school personnel may share any kind of classroom
observations with parents or guardians regarding the student’s
acadenmi ¢ performance and behavior, but they may not conpel any
specific action by the parent or require the student to take
medi cati on.

MR. BENAVIDES said that the sponsor feels that any nedical
deci sions regarding student’s needs should be a nmatter between
the student, the student’s parents, and a conpetent health care
prof essi onal chosen by the parent. He added that nothing in the
bill precludes any school personal from using any other neans of
deal i ng wi th behavi oral problens.

3:20: 00 PM

CHAIR DYSON renmarked that there were sone aspects of the L
version that caused him concern. He asked him M. Benavides to
describe sone of the changes that were nmade since the |ast
ver si on.

MR. BENAVIDES replied that the sponsor added the phrase “unless
authorized by law after the phrase ®“school personnel may not”
on page 1, line 7. He added that this allows persons certified
by school districts to conduct psychol ogi cal eval uati ons.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2006



He said that the provision on the second page that prohibited
school personal from recomrending a psychiatric evaluation was
dr opped. He added that the phrase “except when refusal of
consent causes a child to suffer mental injury or neglect” was
added to line 4, page 2.

3:24: 21 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the purpose of this bill is to address
the comon conplaint that children are often inappropriately
nmedi cated in response to their behavioral problens.

SENATOR DAVIS replied yes and added that it also defines what
teachers can and cannot do while addressing behavioral problens.
She said that she has heard several parents conplain that they
felt they had to put their children on psychotropic drugs in
order to keep their children in school

3:.27:21 PM

CHAI R DYSON remarked that due to tight scheduling, the commttee
could not hear public testinony on the bill during the current
nmeet i ng. He added that the commttee nenbers would review the

witten testinony of anyone who wised to testify on the bill.

SENATOR ELTON noved to report CSSB 48(HES) version out of
commttee wth individual recomendations and indeterm nate
fiscal note. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

CHAI R DYSON adj ourned the neeting at 3:30:25 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2006



